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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Erected in 1896, the Oconomowoc Depot is a one story structure built of split
granite boulders. It has an extended hipped roof, to which its great length
is attributable. The roof, supported by simple wooden brackets that seem to
rest on granite corbels, is bisected by a gabled roof perpendicular to the
tracks; the gables themselves having parapets with Lake Superior sandstone
coping. Each gable also has a series of four attic windows divided by split
granite mullioms, with a cut sandstone sill.

The main section of the depot contained the ladies' waiting room, the train
dispatcher's office, and the gentlemen's waiting room. To the east of this
section was the baggage room, to the west was an open truck shed. Supporting
the roof over the truck shed were four sturdy square columns. Uniting these
columns to each other and the central section of the depot, as well-as uniting
the baggage room to the central section, were: trusses that conveyed the
likeness of Tudor arches. The silils and the lintels decorating these parts of
the depot were all cut sandstone.

The interior of the depot was finished with smooth plaster walls above paneled
wainscoting. The gentlemen's waiting room is the only part of the depot to
have undergone any structural alteration over the years. It was initially
divided to provide office space for the Railway Express Agency; it has since
been further divided.

The only other modification to.the property in general was .made in 1903
when a platform shed was erected on the south side of the tracks. The depot
sits empty today, except for the freight agent on duty.
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BUILDER/ARCHITECT Charles Sumner Frost2

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Oconomowoc Depot is significant not only because of the excellence of its
architecture, but also because it was built at the direction of Mr. Albert
Earling, 2nd vice-president and future president of the Chicago, Milwaukee,

St. Paul and Pacific Railroad.3

Earling had a summer house in Oconomowoc, and

his desire to have an edifice to impress his friends was in keeping with the
upperclass resort: image that Oconomowoc had in’ the late nineteenth and early’

twentieth centuries. 4

The depot, designed by Chicago architect Chatles Frost,

was in constant use then by Oconomowoc's wealthy visitors and residents.
The depot stands today as one of the few remaining structures of Oconomowoc's
famed resort era.

Architecture:

Born in Maine in 1856, Charles Sumner Frost formally studied architecture at the

Massachussetts Institute of Technology.
took a position with the Boston firm of Peabody and Stearns.

Upon completion of his studies, Frost
Having moved to

Chicago in 1881, Frost then worked in partnership with Henry Iwes, Cobb. This
partnership disolved in 1889, with Frost working alone until 1898 when he formed
a partnership with Alfred Granger.

During the time that he was in general practice, Frost made a thorough study

of the railway station.

It was during this time that, in 1885, Frost married

Mary Hughitt; daugher of Marvin Hughitt, a midwestern railroad magnate.
Complemented by his railroad station studies, this association no doubt
contributed to the number of depot commissions that Frost received.

Among the many railroad structures designed by Frost and his partners were the
Chicago and Northwestern Railroad Company offices, the La Salle Station, and
the Northwestern Terminal in Chicago, Union Stations in Omaha and St. Paul, and

the Northwestern depot in Milwaukee.
smaller stations designed by Frost.

Wisconsin also claims several .of tha
Those still in existence include depots at

Lake Geneva, chnomowoc, Wausau, Ashland, Fond .du Lac, Superior, South Milwaukee,
and Eau Claire. 1In regard to small depot design Frost said:

The design for small stations is very similar: each requires two
waiting rooms, one ticket office, and a baggage-room, but so simple
a problem, if considered rightly, has many points important both to
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the company and the travelling public . . . . Architecturally, the
building should express its purpose and when possible, also give

some hint as to the character of the town or city it serves. Above

all things, as it is intended for a waiting place, the shelter

feature must be strongly developed. The wall and piers should be
massive, even out of proporiton to the load they carry, in order not

to be damaged by the vibration and jar caused by passing trains. The
roof is, after all, the chief feature, and on its handling 9nd material
depend much of the failure or success of the design . . . .

The Oconomowoc depot, as well as Frost's other Wisconsin depots, incorporated his own
design philosophy along with- some of the traits found in Victorian picturesque
design. The one characteristic in Frost's philosophy, however, that sets each

depot apart is his belief that each structure should be designed and built in

an appropriate style for the particular community it served. In Oconomowoc's

case this meant a depot built of split granite boulders, which were found

abundantly in the area, with Lake Superior sandstone trim. The symmetrical

design of the depot, and its Victorian features, made it a very dignified

structure; one worthy of serving the esteemed residents and guests of Oconomowoc's
resort era.

History:

Chartered in 1851, the Milwaukee and Watertown Railroad reached Oconomowoc in
December 1854. Oconomowoc's first depot, a red brick building, had been built
in the summer of that_year, and it served as the western terminus of the line
through most of 1855. In following years growth of Oconomowoc and increasing
traffic on the line created the need for a new depot, which was completed, also
of brick, in 1879.

Oconomowoc established its reputation as an important resort during the decade of the
Civil War. The William Tell House was built in 1858, a substantial number of

of hotels and resorts, including Draper Hall, the Woodlands, Jones House,

Townsend House, and Giffordsywere in operation by the mid 1870s. By conveying

wealthy vacationers from Milwaukee and Chicago, the railroad was vital not only

to the success of Oconomowoc's resorts, but also of estates, and throughout its

heyday the railroad was the chief means of transporting guests and residents

alike to the area. Among the more prominent of these summer residents were Albert
Earling, second vice president of the Milwaukee Road, and Philip Armour, the
meat-packing magnate.
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By the mid 1890s the need for a new depot had become quite apparent. No doubt
the most compelling reason was that the area around the old station had
developed a noxious odor, owing to the location of stockyards direccly across
the tracks. Both Earling and Armour, who was a stockholder in the railroads,
actively supported the plan for a new depot; due perhaps to their interest
and to the stylishness of Oconomowoc, a very handsome depot was designed.

As the railrocad stated in the May 23, 1896, issue of the Wisconsin Free Press, the
new depot would be built-"30 feet wide and 88 feet long, with pavilions to the
street from each end, a large baggage room 24 feet by 3015eet, and with all

the modern conveniences;" the estimated cost was $12,000. New track, however,
would be needed to serve the new depot, and since the City of Oconomowoc clearly
would benefit from construction of the new depot, the railroad requested that

the city share in the cost of laying the track. The city compiled.13

Oconomowoc's new depot was completed in 1896 and served passengers until 1972,

when the Milwaukee Road discontinued its Cannonball commuter train. Since that

time an agent has been on duty, but the depot has largely remained empty and

unused. At various times its future has been discussed by the people of Oconomowoc,
and several, not wanting the depot to go the way of the Townsend House, Draper

Hall and the rest of Oconomowoc's o0ld resorts, have written the State

Historical Society of Wisconsin expressing support for the preservation and
restoration of the depot.

The Milwaukee Road sold the depot to Kathleen Wussow on May 31, 1978.14
Although plans are indefinite at this time, the Wussows have said that they
want to retain as much of the present exterior design as possible in whatever
new function they have for the depot. Said A. W. Wussow, Kathleen's
father, "we do appreciate the historical significance this structure has to the
citizens of Oconomowoc, and we want this landmark to continue to be a heritage
of this community."13

1
Wisconsin Free Press, May 30, 1896

Blueprints for the Oconomowoc, Wisconsin depot. Copies in the possession of
the Milwaukee Road, the State Historical Society of Wisconsin.

3Jean Johnson, Illustricus Oconomowoc, (Milwaukee: Franklin Publishers),
1977, p. 180. ALSO: Quit Claim Deed - Chicago, Milwaukee, and St. Paul Railroad
Company to City of Oconomowoc. Dated June 18, 1896, and signed by Albert Earling.
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4"Seek Help to Save Oconomowoc Depot,' Oconomowoc Enterprise, Junme 19, 1975.

5The National Cyclopedia of American Biography, New York: J.T. White and
Company, vol. 27, p. l44.

6The Railroad depot questionmaire, a survey by the South Milwaukee Historical
Society; 1977.
7Architectural Reviewer, September 1897 pp. 19-22

81bid., p. 31

9The History of Waukesha County, Wisconsin. Chicago: Western Historical
Company, 1880, p. 700.

0r144., pp. 710-711

111pid., p. 181.

12Wisconsin Free Press, May 23, 1986.

l3Wisconsin Free Press, May 30, 1896.

L4conversation with John Nail, Property Management Division; Chicago,
Milwaukee, St. Paul and Pacific Railroad, Chicago, Ill., July 27, 1978,

15"Depot Plans Please Oconomowoc, Family, "Milwaukee Journal, Jan. 28, 1978.
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Deceased. Los Angeles: Hennessey and Ingalls, 1970, p. 224.
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